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 K0000A Life Safety Code Recertification 

Survey was conducted by the Indiana 

State Department of Health in accordance 

with 42 CFR 483.470(j).

Survey Date:  02/15/13

Facility Number:  004492

Provider Number:  15G721

AIM Number:  200512660

Surveyor:  Mark Bugni, Life Safety Code 

Specialist

At this Life Safety Code survey, AWS 

was found not in compliance with 

Requirements for Participation in 

Medicaid, 42 CFR Subpart 483.470(j), 

Life Safety from Fire and the 2000 edition 

of the National Fire Protection 

Association (NFPA) 101, Life Safety 

Code (LSC), Chapter 32, New Residential 

Board and Care Occupancies.

This one story facility was fully 

sprinklered.  The facility has a fire alarm 

system with smoke detection in the 

corridors, client sleeping rooms, and in 

common living areas.  The facility has a 

capacity of 4 and had a census of 4 at the 

time of this survey.
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Calculation of the Evacuation Difficulty 

Score (E-Score) using NFPA 101A, 

Alternative Approaches to Life Safety, 

Chapter 6, rated the facility Slow with an 

E-Score of 4.0.

Quality Review by Robert Booher, Life 

Safety Code Specialist-Medical Surveyor 

on 02/19/13. 

The facility was found not in compliance 

with the aforementioned regulatory 

requirements as evidenced by the 

following:
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483.470(j)(1)(i) 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

OTHER LSC DEFICIENCY NOT ON 2786

Monthly fire extinguisher checks 

will be completed, and the tags 

on the extinguishers initialed and 

dated.  These checks will be 

completed by the Group Home 

Manager or Team Leader, and 

evidence of this will be submitted 

to the AWS Director with the 

submission of a monthly checklist 

indicating it has been completed.

03/17/2013  12:00:00AMK0130Based on observation, record review and 

interview, the facility failed to ensure 3 of 

3 portable fire extinguishers were 

inspected at least monthly, and the 

inspections were documented, including 

the date and initials of the person 

performing the inspection.  LSC 4.6, 

General Requirements at 4.6.12.2 requires 

existing LSC features obvious to the 

public, such as fire extinguishers, to be 

either maintained or removed.  NFPA 10, 

the Standard for Portable Fire 

Extinguishers, Chapter 4-3.4.2 requires at 

least monthly, the date of inspection and 

the initials of the person performing the 

inspection shall be recorded.  In addition 

NFPA 10, 4-2.1 defines inspection as a 

quick check an extinguisher is available 

and will operate.  This deficient practice 

could affect all clients, visitors and staff.

Findings include:

Based on observation during a tour of the 

facility with the group home team leader 

on 02/15/13 from 9:00 a.m. to 10:50 a.m., 

the portable fire extinguishers located in 

the kitchen, the garage, and the living 

room bore service inspection tags 

indicating there was no monthly check 

since the annual inspection was conducted 
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on 04/29/12.  Based on an interview with 

the group home team leader on 02/15/13 

at 10:45 a.m., there were no other records 

available to indicate monthly inspections 

for the three fire extinguishers were 

conducted from May 2012 through 

January 2013.
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483.470(j)(1)(i) 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

Utilities comply with Section 9.1.     32.2.5.1, 

33.2.5.1

The electric outlets in the 

medicine room identified will be 

provided with a ground-fault 

circuit interrupter.   The AWS 

QDDP will contact a contractor to 

insure this is completed.

03/17/2013  12:00:00AMKS046Based on observation and interview, the 

facility failed to ensure 2 of 2 electrical 

outlets near a sink in the medicine room 

were provided with ground fault circuit 

interrupter (GFCI) protection against 

electric shock.  LSC 9.1.2 requires 

electrical wiring and equipment shall be 

in accordance with NFPA 70, National 

Electrical Code.  NFPA 70, Article 210.8, 

Ground-Fault Circuit-Interrupter 

Protection for Personnel, in 210.8(A), 

Dwelling Units, requires ground-fault 

circuit-interrupter (GFCI) protection for 

all personnel in bathrooms, and kitchens 

at receptacles intended to serve the 

counter top surfaces.  Note: Moisture can 

reduce the contact resistance of the body 

and electrical insulation is more subject to 

failure.  This deficient practice could 

affect all clients and staff who would use 

the medicine room handwash sink.

Findings include:

Based on observation on 02/15/13 at 

10:10 a.m. with the group home team 

leader, the medicine room handwash sink 

had two electric outlets one foot on either 

side of the handwash sink which were not 

provided with a ground-fault circuit 

interrupters.  Furthermore, the main 
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electric panel in the garage was checked 

and it was confirmed the electric 

receptacles one foot from the medicine 

room handwash sink were not provided 

with GFCI protection to prevent electric 

shock.  This was confirmed by the group 

home team leader at the exit conference 

on 02/15/13 at 10:55 a.m.
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483.470(j)(1)(i) 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

PROMPT

Where an automatic sprinkler system is 

installed, for either total or partial building 

coverage, the system is in accordance with 

Section 9.7 and initiates the fire alarm 

system in accordance with 32.2.3.4.1, 

32.2.3.5.2.  The adequacy of the water 

supply is documented to the authority having 

jurisdiction.

Exception No. 1: In prompt evacuation 

facilities, an automatic sprinkler system in 

accordance with NFPA 13D, Standard for 

the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in One 

and Two Family Dwellings and 

Manufactured Homes, is permitted.  

Facilities with more than eight residents are 

permitted.  Facilities with more than eight 

residents are treated as two-family dwellings 

with regard to water supply.  Additionally, 

entrance foyers are sprinklered.

Exception No. 2: Not applicable

Exception No. 3: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities where an 

automatic sprinkler system is in accordance 

with NFPA 13, Standard for the Installation 

of Sprinkler Systems, automatic sprinklers 

are not required in closets not exceeding 24 

sq. ft and in bathrooms not exceeding 55 sq. 

ft., provided that such spaces are finished 

with lath and plaster or material providing a 

15 minute thermal barrier.

Exception No. 4: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities up to and 

including four stories in height, systems in 

accordance with NFPA 13R, Standard for 

the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in 
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Residential Occupancies up to an Including 

Four Stories in Height, are permitted.

Exception No. 5: Not applicable

Exception No. 6: Initiation of the fire alarm 

system is not required for existing 

installations in accordance with 33.2.3.5.5.

SLOW

Where an automatic sprinkler system is 

installed, for either total or partial building 

coverage, the system is in accordance with 

Section 9.7 and initiates the fire alarm 

system in accordance with 32.2.3.4.1.  The 

adequacy of the water supply is documented 

to the authority having jurisdiction.

Exception No. 2: In slow and impractical 

evacuation capability facilities, an automatic 

sprinkler system in accordance with NFPA 

13D, Standard for the Installation of 

Sprinkler Systems in One and Two Family 

Dwellings and Manufactured Homes, with a  

30 minute water supply, is permitted.  All 

habitable areas and closets are sprinklered. 

Facilities with more than eight residents are 

treated as two family dwellings with regard 

to water supply.

Exception No. 3: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities where an 

automatic sprinkler system is in accordance 

with NFPA 13, Standard for the Installation 

of Sprinkler Systems, automatic sprinklers 

are not required in closets not exceeding 24 

sq. ft. and in bathrooms not exceeding 55 

sq. ft., provided that such spaces are 

finished with lath and plaster or material 

providing a 15 minute thermal barrier.

Exception No. 4: In prompt and slow 
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evacuation capability facilities up to and 

including four stories in height, systems in 

accordance with NFPA 13R, Standard for 

the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in 

Residential Occupancies up to and Including 

Four Stories in Height, are permitted.

Exception No. 5: Not Applicable

Exception No. 6: Initiation of the fire alarm 

system is not required for existing 

installations in accordance with 32.2.3.5.5.

MPRACTICAL

Where an automatic sprinkler system is 

installed, for either total or partial building 

coverage, the system is in accordance with 

Section 9.7 and shall initiate the fire alarm 

system in accordance with 32.2.3.4.1.  The 

adequacy of the water supply isdocumented 

to the authority having jurisdiction.     

32.2.3.5.2.

Exception No. 1: Not Applicable.

Exception No. 2: In slow and impractical 

evacuation capability facilities, an automatic 

sprinkler system in accordance with NFPA 

13D, Standard for the Installation of 

Sprinkler system in One and Two Family 

Dwellings and Manufactured Homes, with a 

30 minute water supply, is permitted.  All 

habitable areas and closets are sprinklered. 

Facilities with more than eight residents are 

treated as two family dwellings with regard 

to water supply.

Exception No. 3: Not Applicable.

Exception No. 4: Not Applicable.

Exception No. 5: In impractical evacuation 
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capability facilities up to and including four 

stores in height, systems in accordance with 

NFPA 13R, Standard for the Installation of 

Sprinkler Systems in Residential 

Occupancies up to and Including Four 

Stores in Height, are permitted. All habitable 

areas and closets are sprinklered.

Exception No. 6: Initiation of the fire alarm 

system is not required for existing 

installations in accordance with 33.2.3.5.5.

Koorsen Fire & Safey Company 

has been contacted and they will 

recalibrate or replace the 

sprinkler gauge as required.  This 

task will be added to their 

automatic service schedule to 

occur every five years.  The AWS 

Director will work with Koorsen 

Fire & Safety Company to insure 

this is completed.

03/17/2013  12:00:00AMKS056Based on record review, observation and 

interview; the facility failed to ensure 1 of 

1 sprinkler gauges was recalibrated or 

replaced every five years.  LSC 9.7.5 

requires automatic sprinkler systems be 

inspected, tested and maintained in 

accordance with NFPA 25, Standard for 

the Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance 

of Water-Based Fire Protection Systems.  

NFPA 25, Section 2-3.2 states gauges 

shall be replaced every five years or tested 

every five years by comparison with a 

calibrated gauge.  Gauges not accurate to 

within 3 percent of the full scale shall be 

recalibrated or replaced.  This deficient 

practice could affect all residents, staff 

and visitors.

Findings include:

Based on record review with the group 

home team leader on 02/15/13 at 9:00 

a.m., the Sprinkler System Inspection 

Reports dating from 2006 through 2012 

did not indicate the sprinkler system 
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water gauge had been replaced.  Based on 

observation of the sprinkler system riser 

on 02/15/13 at 9:15 a.m., the sprinkler 

system gauge was not dated and the 

inspection tags on the riser had no date 

listed on any tag indicating the 

replacement of the sprinkler water gauge.  

This was verified by the group home team 

leader at the time of record review and 

observation of the sprinkler riser.
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